
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


February 24, 2011
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, February 24, 2011, at
 7:00 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,
Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk
_____________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Frady called the February 24, 2011 Board of Commissioners Official Session to Order at 7:01 p.m.
Commissioner Hearn gave the Invocation and led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of members of the Starr’s Mill High School Panthers Football Team who won the State
Region III AAAA Championship in high school football.


Commissioner Horgan, on behalf of the Board, congratulated the Starr’s Mill High School Panthers Football
Team for their 2010 accomplishments, and he read the Board’s resolution to the team.  He then gave individual
resolutions to each team member.  A copy of the request and resolution, identified as “Attachment 1", follow
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
February 24, 2011
Page 2


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Ray White: Mr. Ray White spoke about his support for the East Fayetteville Bypass, and his desire to either stop or
suspend the construction of the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He added that the Board was elected by the people, and that
its fiduciary responsibility is to the people and not to one segment of the people such as developers.  He said Fayette
County does not like eminent domain, and that despite women crying and appeals for a “farm that has been here
forever”,  it appears that the peoples’ appeals seem to just “bounce off you guys like no problem.”  He suggested that
the Board look at the last local and national elections to see how the people feel when they perceive they are being
ignored.  He continued that he had been to several meetings and has not seen one supporter of the West Fayetteville
Bypass speak to the Board.


Marilyn Watts: Ms. Marilyn Watts presented her case concerning why she should be allowed to remain on the Fayette
County Board of Elections, and she stressed her experience, her opponent’s lack of experience, and the potential
consequences the County could have with an inexperienced Elections Board.  She spoke about the State Elections
Board meeting she and the Elections staff attended in Macon and about the two pages worth of municipalities and
counties that were having trouble with respect to how they managed their elections processes.  She continued that
Fayette County has a wonderful Elections staff and that staff attends all of the training opportunities available to it, but
she continued that the new Democratic nominee to the Elections Board has no experience in this area; even though she
wants to learn and get involved.  She stated that the person the Board was considering to put in her place has no
election experience, so that meant two members of a three-member Board that have no experience in elections. 


Zilsa Huston: Ms. Zilsa Huston publically supported the comments, in verbatim, given by Mr. Ray White.  She said she
is a citizen of Fayette County and she felt the Commission should only respect what she as a citizen thinks, not what
the Board as a body would like. She then encouraged the citizens in the audience to clap.  Chairman Frady replied that
the Board deserves respect as well, and he encouraged the citizens and the Board to show mutual respect.


Sheila McIntyre: Ms. Sheila McIntyre spoke about the “hubris” of the Board, and noted that the hubris was showing with
respect to the Board’s consideration of replacing Ms. Marilyn Watts on the Board of Elections.  She said that the very
consideration of replacing the only experienced person that is on the Elections Board resulting in three novices for the
2012 elections is a sign of hubris.  She then spoke about the Board’s hubris regarding  the West Fayetteville Bypass,
and she said the Bypass was a “mess” since it does not even have a proper paper trail. 


Latrelle Burcher: Ms. Latrelle Burcher spoke in opposition to the West Fayetteville Bypass, and she utilized four main
points to outline her position.  Her first point concerned the accessibility of criminals to her property and her neighbors’
property in the Lees Mill Road area with the construction of the West Fayetteville Bypass.  Her second point was that
the Board had provided no plans for a fence or landscaping to add privacy and security. She noted that residents in
Peachtree City have noise abatement fences along Highway 74, and that she did not want to live like that and with the
noise of road traffic.    She was also concerned that motorists would not abide by the 45-miles-per-hour limit posted on
the road, and instead would travel at 60-miles-per-hour.  Her third point was that the Board had decided not to
compensate residents for their trees. Her fourth point concerned a proposed roundabout at the intersection of Lees Mill
Road and the West Fayetteville Bypass.  She said this roundabout would take a greater area of property and would
destroy driveways, pastureland, and front yards.  She pointed out that the Blount family was able to sell their home and
leave Fayette County because the County took their house, but in this case the County would not be taking houses.  She
said she preferred for the County to take entire houses rather than leave the people with the destruction and problems
caused by roundabouts.  She spoke about the problems that would be experienced by school buses riding on the
roundabout.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes
February 24, 2011
Page 3


Denise Ogino: Ms. Denise Ogino thanked County Administrator Jack Krakeel for his efforts to get answers to the
citizens.  She also thanked Commissioners McCarty, Hearn, Horgan, and Brown for attending the recent Tea Party event
in order to learn where the people stand and their pressing issues.  She informed Chairman Frady that the people were
clapping since they were in agreement with the previous speaker.  She closed saying the Public Comment section of
the agenda is reserved for the people to speak, and the people should be allowed to clap.  She said the people are
clapping to the let the Board know they are concerned about what they hear concerning the West Fayetteville Bypass.


Krystal Carnahan: Ms. Krystal Carnahan spoke in opposition to the East Fayetteville Bypass, saying that the projected
plan would cause the road to be eight feet from her back door.  She spoke about why it had no longer been regarded
as a top priority in Fayette County, and how it would be a “dead-end road” that would only benefit the citizens of Clayton
County.  She did not understand why the Fayette County would bypass everything that Fayetteville had spent
considerable funds to construct.  She did not understand why the County would not utilize the roads that are already in
existence, some of which have had significant funds spent on them, and instead “take away farms” and build bridges
all with a steep price tag and environmental concerns as well.  She asked why was there a need for the East Fayetteville
Bypass.  She mentioned that she has an autistic son, and that she has assurance that if he gets away from her there
is some distance between the current road and her home. 


Steve Smithfield: Mr. Steve Smithfield spoke in opposition to both the East and West Fayetteville Bypasses.  He
commented on Mr. David Wimmer’s statements that were heard by the Board at the February 2, 2011 meeting, as well
as Mr. Wimmer’s comments recently given in The Citizen newspaper.  He said Mr. Wimmer made very astute
observations that should be taken to heart regarding the East Fayetteville Bypass.  He said that the East Fayetteville
Bypass, once abandoned for the West Fayetteville Bypass, is not the number one priority transportation project in
Fayette County.  He continued that, according to Mr. Wimmer, the East Fayetteville Bypass would stretch from State
Highway 85 North to Fayetteville at Corinth Road, to State Highway 85 South of Fayetteville.  He quoted Mr. Wimmer’s
statement in a newspaper that “part of the need for an East Bypass is so important is because there are future plans for
highway widening in Fayette County including 54 East, Highway 85 South of Fayetteville, and both Georgia Highways
279 and 314.  These will increase the traffic if we don’t get the East Bypass in place, the traffic slowdown will be
unbearable.”   Mr. Smithfield stated that the West Fayetteville Bypass was introduced to the public as a Bypass, but
under intense pressure from public outcries, the road was renamed “Veteran’s Parkway.”   He drew the conclusion that
Mr. Wimmer realized that the County had misled the public with the functionality of the West Bypass which was voted
in as part of the SPLOST project in 2004, and that his obvious intent in addressing the abrupt ending of the East Bypass
was to warn that the County is making the same mistake again. 


Tom Halpin: Mr. Tom Halpin spoke about the lack of transparency that he is noticing in Fayette County.  He explained
that when the West Fayetteville Bypass was first proposed, there was a large sign at the corner of Huiet Drive and
Georgia Highway 54 showing Phase I of the Bypass.  He noted that he has not found similar signs for Phases II and III
of the Bypass.  He said that he will be affected by Phase III of the Bypass, and he wanted commuters who drive in the
area to know that is where the proposed Phase III Bypass would be constructed.  He did not want to have citizens trying
to “dig through” the County’s website trying to find information, and mentioned that many people who will be affected
do not have access to or knowledge about how to operate a computer and the internet.  He also spoke about the danger
at the intersection at Georgia Highway 85 and Harp Road, specifically about a school bus accident at that intersection,
and how he had been informed by County staff that there were no plans to put a traffic light there even if a Bypass is
built. He then spoke about how Phase III of the Bypass would go by Bennett’s Mill subdivision, and how the
Commissioners had asked about building a tunnel under Phase III, but there was no talk about how it would separate
one subdivision with the pool and tennis courts on one side and family members crossing Phase III to access them.  
He closed his remarks by speaking about the impact of the West Fayetteville Bypass, which would be close to his house,
and how he would have to hear traffic noise in the early morning as people traveled the road.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes
February 24, 2011
Page 4


David Hall: Mr. David Hall stated that the attempt to silence the people from clapping was “very unacceptable”.  He
reminded the Board that the people reserve the right to peacefully vote the Commissioners out of office, and how he
perceived the Board was trying to “intimidate” the people.  He spoke about the rights given to people by God, and
enunciated by Thomas Jefferson, and how the Board answers to the people.  He said if the Board wanted to “be an
enemy of the people”, then the Board has lost its authority.  He added that the West Fayetteville Bypass was detrimental
to the lifestyle of Fayette County.  He finished his remarks by  asking the Board how much they value the West
Fayetteville Bypass, and asked if it is worth “all the crime that may result from that Bypass.”  Chairman Frady remarked
that Mr. Hall was a very patriotic person and thanked him for his patriotism.


Carolyn Perdue: Ms. Carolyn Perdue spoke against the West Fayetteville Bypass. She spoke about many of the
financial and economical changes that have occurred since the West Fayetteville Bypass was planned, and how rising
costs on road materials, gas, oil, and other commodities will have a negative impact on the County’s budget.  She
suggested if the Board was comprised of good businessmen, they would tell the developers “to build their own road”.
She closed saying developers will not build in today’s economy, citizens cannot afford to buy developments, and the
county could potentially “spend all its money on roads.”  


Andrea Lyle: Ms. Andrea Lyle announced that she had a job after four years of looking for one.   She spoke about how
she left Atlanta for Clayton County, then left Clayton County to come to Fayette County, and is now looking to leave
Fayette County and to move out of the State of Georgia.  She asked the Board to stop the frivolous spending of
taxpayers’ dollars because the nation is in a recession.  She added that she is against both the East and West
Fayetteville Bypasses since they have a direct impact on greenspace in the county. 


Tom Waller: Mr. Tom Waller spoke against the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He said the County had not presented
demand data that justifies the road, and with today’s economy in this county, regardless of if it is called a recession or
a depression, if the county “does not move forward on a moratorium on major capital expenditures for the next three to
five years, you will wish that you had.”


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Brown asked to remove Consent Agenda Items 7, 8, 10, 11 and 12 for discussion.  


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 2-6, 9, and 13. Commissioner Horgan seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously. 


2. Approval of a request from the Sheriff’s Department for permission to dispose of the 1971 Bell
Helicopter purchased with Federal Seizure Funds which is no longer of service to the County.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations
Division by $1,836.50 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal
Agencies. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


4. Approval of staff’s request to grant a right-of-way easement to Georgia Power along State Route 74
South from Paschall Road to U.S. Post (Fayette County) Distribution Line, for the purpose of installing
and maintaining two anchors, guy poles, and wires.  A copy of the request and right-of-way easement,
identified as “Attachment 4", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
February 24, 2011
Page 5


5. Approval of staff’s request for authorization to apply for an additional grant of $5,000 from the Council
of Juvenile Court Judges of Georgia for providing community alternatives to juvenile incarceration.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to declare seventeen Mitel 4001 telephones and fifty Mitel power
adapters as unserviceable surplus property, and to authorize staff to sell these items by utilizing the
GovDeals internet web site.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachmeent 6", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


7. Approval of an Ordinance establishing speed limits for Veterans Parkway, portions of which were
formerly segments of Lester Road, Tillman Road, Sandy Creek Road and Heritage Farm Lane.


Commissioner Brown stated that he reviewed the speed limits intended for Veteran’s Parkway and its adjoining
roads, and that he was concerned that the roads were near school complexes and buildings were posted as
45 miles per hour.  He mentioned that Ms. Burcher’s comments where she mentioned that the 45 miles an hour
speed limit translates into 60 miles per hour for motorists.  He asked for the roads which are near a school
complex be lowered from 45 miles per hour to 35 miles per hour.  


County Engineer Carlos Christian explained that Veteran’s Parkway is currently posted at 45 miles per hour,
but there are school zones that reduce speeds to 25 miles per hour.  He clarified that the 45 miles per hour runs
from Georgia Highway 54 along Lester Road up till the speed reduction for the school.  He asked the Board
to approve the request so that it can be enforced by the Sheriff’s Department.  Discussion followed.


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 7 as presented by staff.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  No further discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and
McCarty voting in opposition.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.


8. Approval of Resolution No. 2011-05 abandoning and trading public road right-of-way of old Lester Road
to Reynolds Development & Management Group for additional right-of-way needed along Lester Road
from property within the Waterlace Subdivision.


Commissioner Brown explained that he pulled this item off the Consent Agenda because it had a direct effect
on the West Fayetteville Bypass, and he had promised constituents to not support the furtherance of the
Bypass.  He announced he would vote in opposition to Consent Agenda Item 8.


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 8 as presented by staff.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and
McCarty voting in opposition.  A copy of the request and Attachment 2011-05, identified as “Attachment 8",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


9. Approval of staff’s request for authorization of an FY 2011 budget amendment of $1,200 in revenue and
expenditures accounts to fund the continuation of a youth program used by Juvenile Supervision
personnel.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
February 24, 2011
Page 6


10. Approval of a request from the Fayette County Civitan Club for a Proclamation of Appreciation
designating February 25, 2011 as “Clergy Appreciation Day”.


Commissioner Brown thought it was unfortunate that this request from the Fayette County Civitan Club was
placed on the Consent Agenda, and he thought that it was “slighting clergy in Fayette County.”  He did not want
to create a misconception that the clergy were being “brushed through a Consent Agenda.”  He spoke about
the history of Clergy Day, and about the sinking of the U.S.S. Dorchester and how four ship chaplains gave their
life jackets to other sailors so they could survive, even though all four chaplains eventually drowned.


Chairman Frady replied that the representative of the Fayette County Civitan Club, Mr. Ballard, had asked the
Board to place this item on the Consent Agenda since they had a meeting and were unable to attend the
Commission meeting.  He further clarified that the request was not submitted to the Board in time for the Board
to do otherwise, and that the club had expressed their gratitude for honoring them in this way.


Commissioner Brown moved to approve the Proclamation of Appreciation designating February 25, 2011 as
“Clergy Appreciation Day”.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 10", follow these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


11. Approval of amendments to County Policy No. 100.03 which provides guidance for the development of
agendas for County Commission meetings.


Commissioner Brown noted that County Policy No. 100.03 was provided in the Agenda Meeting packet, but
a newer one that more accurately reflected the decisions reached by the Board during its recent retreat was
available on the dais and obtainable from Executive Assistant Carol Chandler.


Commissioner Brown moved to approve County Policy No. 100.03 as newly provided and available on the dais.
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  Some discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.
A copy of the request and the revised version of County Policy No. 100.03, identified as “Attachment 11", follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


12. Approval of amendments to County Policy No. 100.05 which provides guidance for the development
and/or amendment of county codes, ordinances, rules or regulations and policies, including the
introduction of new initiatives.


Commissioner Brown stated that during the Board Retreat Items regarding subsections 1© and 1(d).  He said
during the Retreat he had spoken about not allowing the County Administrator to decide whether or not a citizen
can place an item on an agenda.  He continued that with subsection 1(d) as it concerned various advisory
groups, that if advisory groups could be placed on the agenda without the consent of the County Administrator
then  citizens also ought to be placed on the agenda without the consent of the County Administrator.  He
recalled the discussion at the Retreat was that the standards needed to be the same across the Board, and he
further clarified that an Advisory Board such as the Chamber of Commerce of the Kiwanis Club should be
treated no differently than a private citizen who wanted to bring something before the Board.







Action Agenda
February 24, 2011
Page Number 7


Commissioner Hearn replied that the purpose of the discussion concerning the involvement of the County
Administrator was that many of the issues that are brought forth from citizens can be handled by staff, and that
while he did not want to eliminate or stifle citizens from coming before the Board, he really wanted the County
Administrator to be involved since the items can be resolved satisfactorily without the necessity to come before
the Board.  Discussion followed.


Commissioner Horgan moved to adopt County Policy No. 100.05 as presented by staff.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  Commissioner Brown stated he could not vote for the policy since it presents a double
standard.  The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and McCarty voting in opposition.  A copy of the
request and County Policy No. 100.05, identified as “Attachment 12", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


13. Approval of the February 2, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


14. Further consideration of an appointment to the Board of Elections.


Commissioner Hearn nominated Addison Lester for appointment to the Board of Elections.


Commissioner Brown nominated Marilyn Watts for appointment to the Board of Elections.


Commissioner Horgan moved to close nominations for an appointment to the Board of Elections.
Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


Commissioner Hearn stated that he appreciated the work Ms. Marilyn Watts had done over the years, and that
she has set a high standard in the Elections Department, but he felt it was time for a new person, Mr. Addison
Lester, to be placed in the position.  He stated that Mr. Lester attended church with him, that he is well
respected, and that he is Chairman of the Board of Deacons.  He explained that Mr. Lester is retired from
Georgia Power Company, and that he has time to dedicate in his work in this capacity.


Commissioner Hearn moved to appoint Mr. Addison Lester to the Board of Elections.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  Commissioner Brown explained why he could not vote in favor of the nomination and
motion.  The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and McCarty voting in opposition.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 13", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


15. Consideration of a request from the Town of Tyrone for Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax funding
of a transportation scoping study along Tyrone-Palmetto Road, identified as SPLOST Project No. R-1.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon and Tyrone Town Manager Richard Newbern explained the Town of Tyrone’s
request.  


Commissioner Brown stated that while he was in favor of spending $30,000 of SPLOST funds for the scoping
study, the Board needed to be very aware that the money was running thin and that the Board needed to be
careful since there are major projects on the horizon.  He concluded that he could not promise further support
beyond the study.







Action Agenda
February 24, 2011
Page Number 8


Commissioner Hearn encouraged discussion between Fayette County’s Public Works department with Coweta
County’s Public Works department with respect to this scoping study.  


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve staff’s recommendation to budget $30,000 for the funding of a
transportation scoping study along Tyrone-Palmetto Road, known as SPLOST project No. R-1, and to authorize
the Chairman to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with Tyrone upon approval by the County Attorney.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and the
Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of Tyrone and Fayette County, identified as “Attachment 14",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


16. Consideration of a request from the town of Tyrone for the County Road Department to provide
necessary equipment and labor for drainage and paving improvements to 1,700 feet of Valleywood Road
from Senoia Road to the stream.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon and Tyrone Town Manager Richard Newbern explained the Town of  Tyrone’s
request .  Discussion followed.


Commissioner Hearn suggested that the Town of Tyrone should be responsible for staking the limits of the
right-of-way through a surveyor.  He said he has had problems with property in his past experience, and he has
learned that it is a good way to handle this type of work.  Mr. Newbern, Tyrone’s Town Manager, reported that
the Town of Tyrone had no problem with Commissioner Hearn’s suggestion.


Commissioner Horgan moved to authorize the Chairman to sign an Intergovernmental Agreement between
Fayette County and the Town of Tyrone permitting the Fayette Road Department to provide necessary
equipment and labor for drainage and paving improvements to 1,700 feet of Valleywood Road, from Senoia
to the stream, and to require the Town of Tyrone to be responsible for staking the limits of the right-of-way
through a surveyor as suggested by Commissioner Hearn.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The
motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request and the Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town
of Tyrone and Fayette County, identified as “Attachment 15", follow these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


17. Consideration of staff’s recommended scope, alignment and funding strategy for Special Purpose Local
Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Project No. R-8, known as the East Fayetteville Bypass.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon explained that Project No. R-8 had been spoken about several times during
the past two months, and that staff has tried to identify the need, and that several alignments had been
presented for the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He provided staff’s recommendation, based on reviews of data,
opinions, and Board feedback, and he said what was being recommended was that the alignment follow what
has traditionally been the alignment for the project, maintaining a 12–foot right of way and proceed with a two-
lane option with the ability to expand to four lanes if needed in the future.  He then gave further explanation
concerning the conceptual East Fayetteville Bypass alignment.  Discussion followed.  







Action Agenda
February 24, 2011
Page Number 9


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve the conceptual East Fayetteville Bypass alignment, known as
SPLOST Project No. R-8, as shown on Exhibit A, with 120-ft ROW (typical) and the allocation of transportation
SPLOST dollars for engineering, right-of-way, and local matching funds as needed from state, regional
SPLOST, and/or federal dollars for construction.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 16", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


18. Consideration of staff’s request that the Board of Commissioners establish the Budget Calendar and
Policy for Fiscal Year 2012 which begins July 1, 2011 and ends June 30, 2012.


Finance Director Mary Holland reminded the Commissioners that at their Board Retreat, staff had presented
the Board with a proposed budget calendar for Fiscal Year 2012, and that staff had asked for the Board’s
guidance in establishing a budget policy.  She requested that the Board adopt the Budget Policy and the Budget
Calendar for Fiscal Year 2012. Commissioner Horgan stated that the budget policy was “very aggressive” and
that staff had done a good job.


Commissioner Brown moved to approve the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget Calendar and Budget Policy as presented
by staff.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  Commissioner Hearn told the Board that he had a
discussion with County Administrator Jack Krakeel concerning the $7.4 million worth of unreserved-
undesignated funds, that those funds had been accumulated over the previous four years, and that the “least
amount of use of that funds was this coming budget year.”  He said he asked Mr. Krakeel to consider using
about $2.5 million of the unreserved-undesignated funds in his budget, and that he also asked Mr. Krakeel to
be aggressive at looking at the vehicle replacement program since the County needed to be spending the
money responsibly.    


The motion to approve the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget Calendar and Budget Policy as presented by staff passed
unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 17", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


19. Consideration of staff’s request for authorization to proceed with having a Certified Rebuild performed
on a Caterpillar D6H Dozer belonging to the Road Department at a cost estimated at $184,324; and a
request that the funding come from the County’s Contingency Fund.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon and Fleet Maintenance Director Bill Lackey explained staff’s request to the
Board.  The Board discussed various other options that may be available to the staff with respect to its
request.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel recommended that the Board give staff latitude to sole source a piece of
equipment that best meets the needs of the Public Works Department, and bring recommendations back to the
Board for consideration.







Action Agenda
February 24, 2011
Page Number 10


Commissioner Horgan moved to table Agenda Item 19 until the March 10, 2011 Board of Commissioners
meeting, and to authorize staff to proceed with the recommendations suggested by the County Administrator.
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  Discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 18", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


20. Consideration of adoption of the January 27, 2011 Board of Commissioners meeting minutes.
Commissioner Hearn was not present for this meeting.


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve the January 27, 2011 Board of Commissioners Minutes.
Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with
Commissioner Hearn abstaining from the vote.


REPORTS:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS


Create Community Award: County Administrator Jack Krakeel announced that Fayette County had won the Create
Community Award for 2010 as given by the Atlanta Regional Commission.  He explained that this award was given to
recognize and honor outstanding municipalities and counties for innovation and best practices in five different local
government criteria of focus.  He informed the Board that Fayette County won the award in the category of Community
Involvement and Collaboration.  He added that the County won its award due through the efforts involved with the
“Legacy Build” project.  He noted that Commissioner Horgan was heavily involved with the “Legacy Build” project along
with multiple community organizations and private citizens. 


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS


Commissioner Steve Brown: Commissioner Brown commented on the civility of the meeting with respect to agenda
items that had previously been discussed at the Board Retreat held on February 11-12, 2011.  He said he was
concerned about the little amount of SPLOST funds available and he wanted to ensure that the funds were available
for upcoming projects.  He spoke about a meeting he had with Mr. David Wimmer concerning the East Fayetteville
Bypass and related concerns with the project.  He announced that he placed a resolution regarding mass transit on the
March 2, 2011 Workshop agenda, and he encouraged citizens to write their comments to the Board.  He closed his
remarks speaking about the proposed “outer loop”, as planned by the Atlanta Regional Commission, and the impact it
could have on Fayette County.  He suggested that this concern would be placed on an upcoming agenda and that the
Board “best take a position on it at some point or another.”


Vice-Chairman Robert Horgan: Vice-Chairman Horgan stated that his comments were intended for clarification
purposes, and he spoke about how there was discussion about how the County notified citizens of the surveying other
work associated with the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He asked Public Works Director Phil Mallon to speak on the issue
of the use of county letterhead to inform impacted citizens of projects associated with the West Fayetteville Bypass.  Mr.
Mallon explained why that decision was made and how steps to how notify citizens on these issues may take place on
a go-forward basis.







Action Agenda
February 24, 2011
Page Number 11


Commissioner Lee Hearn: Commissioner Hearn commented on the Board Retreat held on February 11-12, 2011.  He
thanked Commissioners Brown and McCarty, and he thought their comments were well received.  He stated there was
a commonality in terms of where the County wanted to go with the Commission body, and the way the budget should
be put together.  He stated that the Board has some tough choices to make in terms of how the budget is handled, and
the way the County manages its revenues.  He addressed Tom Halpin’s discussion about a traffic signal at State Route
85 and Harp Road.  He explained that the ultimate decision on that traffic light belongs to the Georgia Department of
Transportation, and the way the County helps with that decision is by providing updated accident counts at that
intersection.  He said he knew there were many accidents at that intersection, but to date the County has not been able
to convince the GDOT that a traffic signal is needed at that location, even though staff is still under direction to work on
that project. 


Commissioner Allen McCarty: Commissioner McCarty agreed with Commissioner Hearn saying it was a very good
Board Retreat, and that the meeting resulted in some accomplishments and that there are some issues that remain to
be resolved.   He announced that he was present with the Board and the citizens who came on the evening of his 49th


anniversary.  He said his wife was in the audience until she had to take her mother home, so that was an example of
his dedication.  He noticed that a Fayette County veteran came home this week and the Patriot Guard Riders rode
alongside him on his way home.  He congratulated the veteran for returning home safely, and thanked the Patriot Guards
for participating.  He wondered how the veteran felt coming home after he risked his life defending the country and its
freedoms, only to find his county taking peoples’ lands regardless of whether they want to sell it or not; including a piece
of his own property.  He said he was personally offended by the name “Veterans Parkway”, and that he had spoken to
many veterans who are also offended by that name.  He recommended that at some point and time that the County
change the name to another name.


Chairman Herb Frady: Chairman Frady replied that he is a veteran, and he is not for or against the name of Veterans
Parkway.  He said he wanted to name it something else, but he is a veteran and he is not offended by it being there.
He stated that the Board is considering holding an open house meeting where the County can explain its ongoing
projects, the reasons for them, and to provide additional information.  He said people need to come to the meetings,
since the Board has sat in meetings for years “with only five people sitting in the audience”.  He said that was not right
since Fayette County is the citizens’ county.  He said the Board often has to do certain things that it is obligated to do
as well, and that he knew that when the Board makes a decision at meetings it will make at least 51% of the people
angry because it is a decision that alienates people on one side or the other from time to time. He said the Board would
have to do the best it could, and to make the best decisions it could make, in order to keep the County moving in a
direction that is best for it.  He said it was tough to do.


EXECUTIVE SESSION


Real Estate Acquisition:  County Administrator Jack Krakeel announced that Real Estate Acquisition needed to be
discussed in Executive Session.


Commissioner Hearn moved to recess into Executive Session to discuss matters of Real Estate Acquisition.
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 9:08 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 9:39 p.m.







Action Agenda
February 24, 2011
Page Number 12


Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Horgan moved to authorize the Chairman to sign an Executive Session
Affidavit stating two matters of Real Estate Acquisition were discussed in Executive Session.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session
Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 19", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Horgan moved to adjourn the February 24, 2011 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  The Board adjourned at 9:39 p.m. 


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk                      Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 24th day of March 2011.


___________________________________
Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk








Workshop MinutesWorkshop MinutesWorkshop MinutesWorkshop Minutes
Board of Commissioners


March 2, 2011
 3:30 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in an Official Workshop Session on Wednesday, March
2, 2011, at   3:30 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,
Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk
_____________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order.


Chairman Frady called the March 2, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting to Order at 3:30 p.m.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Horgan moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously. 


OLD BUSINESS


1. Report from Parks and Recreation Director Anita Godbee on progress of efforts to form a Kenwood Park
and Recreation Association.


Parks and Recreation Director Anita Godbee gave a report to the Board on the progress of efforts to form a
Kenwood Park and Recreation Association.  She explained that in the summer of 2010, a group of citizens
began discussions with the Fayette County Recreation Commission about forming an association for Kenwood
Park.  She explained that this particular association formed a Steering Committee once they came to the







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page 2


Recreation Commission, and the Steering Committee was led by Mr. David Brill.  She continued that the
Committee met several times and they began the process of forming an association.  She explained that the
purpose of the association was to assist in coordinating the efforts regarding Kenwood Park and the efforts with
the Parks and Recreation Department.  She told the Board that the Kenwood Park Association will promote
community use of the park, and will raise awareness of the benefits of the park through their volunteer efforts
and public relations programs.  She added that the association will also raise and distribute funds for
improvements and maintenance of the park, facilitate the use of the park for special events that they host, and
they will offer membership to all interested patrons.  She informed the Board that the Kenwood Park Association
will follow all the guidelines that the Parks and Recreation Department already has in its policies and
procedures manual that the youth associations are currently using.


Mrs. Godbee told the Board that in February 2011, at the Recreation Commission meeting, the Kenwood Park
Association’s Steering Committee presented to the Recreation Commissioners a finalized copy of their bylaws.
She told the Board that the Recreation Commission will review the bylaws to ensure they are in compliance with
the policies and procedures manual.  She continued that the Kenwood Park Association and the Recreation
Commission wanted to advise the Board of Commissioners that the Kenwood Park Association is ready to
move forward in obtaining its nonprofit status and also becoming an official association under the Parks and
Recreation Department Authority.   Discussion followed.


Mrs. Godbee informed the Board that the next step for the Kenwood Park and Recreation Association would
be to elect temporary officers in order to apply for their nonprofit status.  She said once the Association is
officially nonprofit, the County would require to Association to sign a contract with Fayette County, as is required
for all the other similar associations.  She concluded that before the Kenwood Park and Recreation Association
signs a contract with Fayette County she would return to the Board and provide an additional update.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel recommended that the Board direct the County Attorney to review the
Kenwood Park and Recreation Association’s bylaws, since ultimately the Board would have to approve it in
order for the Association to function under Fayette County’s Recreation Commission.  The Board consented
to the County Administrator’s request.


2. Consideration of staff’s request for updates and minor modifications to various Human Resources
policies. This item was tabled from the December 9, 2010 meeting pending further clarification.


Assistant Human Resources Director Lewis Patterson explained the need for minor modifications to the Human
Resources polices, and he answered the Board’s question.  He explained that the updates and modifications
affected nine separate County policies, and that they were “housekeeping” in nature.  He reminded the Board
that these modifications were tabled at the December 9, 2011 agenda due to an abundance of caution and for
further review, so he, County Administrator Jack Krakeel, and County Attorney Scott Bennett have reviewed
the changes and believe they are ready for adoption.  He asked for the Board’s authority to place the
recommended changes on the March 10, 2011 Agenda for formal approval.  Discussion followed.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel added that part of the changes being requested are due to the result of the
last performance evaluation process the County enacted last December.  He explained that the performance
evaluation process was the first time since the institution of the evaluation program where there was a monetary
allotment for performance since the program was introduced in 2008.  He said subsequent to the process, he
had asked the committee that developed the performance instrument in accordance with the University of
Georgia, to return to the evaluation process and look at the impact of the performance evaluation process to







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page 3


determine if there was any modification that needed to be made; recognizing this was the first time there was
truly a financial impact on one’s performance.  He reported that some of the changes are reflective of the
committee’s work subsequent to its conduct and performance evaluation process.  He said the committee found
that there were several areas where slight adjustment needed to be made to ensure that employees were not
put into position of termination but were put in a position of potentially needing improvement.  He said the
adjustments built in a little flexibility, and that was reflected in the updated policies.


The Board directed that staff’s request for updates and minor modifications to various Human Resources
policies be placed on the March 10, 2011 Consent Agenda.


3. Discussion with Human Resources Staff regarding possible changes in the County’s self-insured
employee health plan in preparation for the annual renewal date of June 1, 2011.


Human Resources Director Connie Boehnke and Ms. Jackie Turner, representing Pacific General, discussed
possible changes to the County’s self-insured employee health plan with the Board.  Mrs. Boehnke informed
the Board that the County’s self-insured employee health plan is reviewed and renewed each year, and she
introduced Ms. Turner to the Board to explain the need for and possible changes to the plan.


Ms. Turner gave a PowerPoint presentation, and she informed the Board that in 2008 the County was on a fully-
insured program managed by Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Georgia, and Pacific General was asked to review and
research the aspects of what could be done for long-term improvements and strategies for “getting a grasp”
on plan improvements and the financial aspects of the program.  She said at the time, there were not some of
the reporting capabilities that are available today, and there was a severe lack of data and transparency and
how the make-up of the claims were calculated.  She said based on the information available, Pacific General
looked at programs that could be implemented.  She continued that in 2009, Blue Cross/Blue Shield issued a
renewal cost for June 2009 that would cost the County over $5.6 million for the fully insured program.  To that
end, the decision was made to change to a partially self-funded format, and with the information available, the
County expected a bill of approximately $4.2 million but not to exceed $5.6 million.  She said, with those
numbers, Pacific General focused on improving data and its transparency in order to make better decisions,
be less reactionary, and be more proactive in how the plan is assessed and in how benefit decisions are made.
She said Pacific General also wanted to eliminate the renewal shock that could be experienced.  She explained
that at the year end for 2011, the County would exceed the expected $4.2 million cost, but that if anticipated
the cost would be below $5.6 million.  She noted that today, with the County’s revenues down and no increases
to the premium cost for the past two years, and she asked for the Board to consider an increase not to exceed
12% of the total plan cost for the upcoming plan year.  She then explained the reason for her request for
consideration, and ways to mitigate increasing costs.  Discussion followed.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel added that the employees have not had any increases in their premiums,
however, prior to becoming fully self-insured the County was under Blue Cross/Blue Shield for approximately
four years during which time the County faced increases of 17%, 23%, and 21% in its annual premiums.  He
said the County was able to negate the annual increases by modifying the plans in each of those subsequent
years, so while the employees are not paying any additional premium, they have incurred additional out of
pocket expense because the plans were fundamentally changed to include increased co-pays for physician
visits, increased co-pays for pharmaceuticals, and the application of a deductible both for the individual and
families under the health plan.  He stressed that he wanted the Board to know that the employees have
absorbed additional costs with the projected increases the County was facing.  After some further discussion,







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page 4


Mr. Krakeel informed the Board that if it moved forward with this proposal, that the employees’ health care
coverage would increase substantially for both the employees and the County, unless the employees chose
to elect other plans which would be less costly but would include higher deductibles and co-pays.  


The Board tabled the request from Human Resources until its March 10, 2011 meeting.  


4. Discussion of proposed transportation projects to be submitted to the Atlanta Regional Roundtable for
consideration under the Transportation Investment Act.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel and Public Works Director Phil Mallon discussed the proposed
transportation projects to be submitted to the Atlanta Regional Roundtable for consideration under the
Transportation Investment Act.  Mr. Krakeel briefly explained that the County and its various municipalities have
been meeting over the course of the last four to six months developing a list of projects for consideration to be
submitted to the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) and the Regional Transportation Roundtable in
accordance to the requirements of Georgia House Bill 277 for the Transportation Improvement Act, and in
preparation for its possible approval by the voters of a 1% regional Local Option Sales Tax for Transportation
in 2012.  He explained that County staff had prepared a list of County projects, as well as projects for the City
of Fayetteville and the Town of Tyrone, and that earlier this week other projects proposed from the City of
Peachtree City had been received by the County.  He stated that the request was for the Board to assist staff
in identifying the priorities, from their perspectives, so that on Tuesday, March 8, 2011, during the joint
Association of Fayette County Government (AFCG)meeting, that at the end of the meeting there will be a
consolidated and prioritized project list that will be submitted in accordance with the requirements of House Bill
277.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon then distributed a report listing  projected budget-level estimates of what staff
projected revenues from Base Case Projected Sales Taxes to be in the 10-County Atlanta Regional
Commission to the Board, and he explained how he calculated the figures.  Discussion followed.


Mr. Krakeel noted that after discussions with his counterparts in the municipalities, it was recommended that
once the Board of Commissioners reached its conclusion on the priority list and once the AFCG reaches their
conclusion, that each of the jurisdictions adopt a resolution in support of the unconstrained project list that will
then be submitted to the Atlanta Regional Commission and the Regional Roundtable.  Commissioner Brown
added that it was imperative that the projects “be ready to roll at the AFCG meeting, and have as many citizens
show up as possible [since] there was a lot on the line.”  


Mr. Mallon reminded the Board that the three key criteria that will be used to decide which projects make the
list and will be considered for funding will be those that:


1) Focus on the Construction Phase: He explained that a project can receive funding for design and right-of-
way, but it is “going to take a backseat to those projects that are ready for construction.”


2) Projects that Demonstrate Full-Funding: He explained if the Regional SPLOST dollars are used for the
construction phase, the County needs to be able to demonstrate the County has funding in place for design,
environmental, and right-of-way requirements.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page 5


3) Project Delivery: He again explained that the Atlanta Regional Commission and the Regional Roundtable
were hoping that up to 40% of the money is spent on projects that could be completed within six years, and that
all the projects could be completed or underway within 10 years.  


He informed the Board that he though Fayette County had several projects, because of its existing SPLOST
funds, that place the County in a “good position to have very competitive projects from those three criteria.”
Further discussion followed.


The Board took no action based on this discussion.  County Administrator Jack Krakeel requested the
Commissioners to either individually or collectively provide feedback to Mr. Mallon concerning their thoughts
on the proposed transportation projects, and the Board consented to the request.


NEW BUSINESS


5. Consideration of Resolution No. 2011-06 regarding Fiscal Responsibility and Protecting Fayette
County’s Quality of Life, as presented by Commissioner Brown.


Commissioner Steve Brown gave prepared remarks concerning Resolution 2011-06.  The following are his
prepared remarks:


Mr. Chairman, I am going to do my utmost to keep Fayette County leadership from unilaterally destroying


the county’s quality of life and creating a devastating budgetary scenario where transit costs create higher


levels of taxation.


Mr. Chairman, one of the themes behind the regional transit plan dubbed “Concept 3” is providing a unified,


seamless transit network which incorporates the development of land use regulations that encourage high


density, urbanized development around the proposed transit nodes, including Fayette County.


Mr. Chairman, I cite the minutes for the regional Transit Planning Board – Thursday, October 25, 2007:


“The primary goal of Concept 3 is to connect people throughout the region to the major employment/activity


centers. This will be accomplished by providing an interconnected and expanded regional transit network;


that will capture a large portion of the employment trips to activity centers and to include the supporting


network of local bus service and the development of land use regulations and patterns that support transit


uses.  This will be a multi-modal network that: Is activity center focused; is an expansion of the rail network


and existing transit infrastructure; has different types of bus service; is not constrained by political


boundaries (is regionally seamless for the user).”


Mr. Chairman, our former Board Chairman Jack Smith was present at that meeting and presented no


objections to the preceding appraisal.  Mr. Chairman, our former Board Chairman voted in favor of Concept


3 which includes mass transit in Fayette County as did our other regional representative Fayetteville Mayor


Ken Steele.


Again, Mr. Chairman, our former Board Chairman as well as our other representative to the Atlanta


Regional Transportation Roundtable, Mayor Steele, voted on December 17, 2010 to approve a funding


formula allowing up to 60 percent or 4.5 billion of our tax dollars for the 2012 Transportation Sales Tax


referendum to be used for capital projects, maintenance and operations for mass transit.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page 6


Mr. Chairman, I cite the minutes for the regional Transit Planning Board - Thursday, September 25, 2008


regarding passage of Concept 3 by the Transit Planning Board’s planning partners MARTA, GRTA, GDOT


and ARC: “This action by our partners will formally incorporate Concept 3 into the regional transportation


planning process and will facilitate positive actions towards the advancement of regional transit.”


Mr. Chairman, our former Board Chairman was present at that meeting and presented on objections to the


preceding statement of purpose on regional mass transit.  


Mr. Chairman, on February 4, 2011, the Editorial Board of the Atlanta Journal-Constitution wrote, “It is


sound fiscal practice to establish a single entity that can plan, finance, build and operate, or contract for,


transit service and infrastructure across jurisdictional borders. Doing so is especially important in today’s


lean times, where each taxpayer dollar must be spent to maximum effect. Let’s use economies of scale and


scope to our advantage as other cities have done.”


Mr. Chairman, Georgia House Speaker David Ralston said a regional transit agency is among the


“reasonable options that we have this session” in the Atlanta Journal-Constitution on February 17, 2011.


As we have learned from the Regional Transportation Roundtable process, having little control over where


85 percent of our Fayette County special transportation tax dollars would go, so too would we have little


control over the implementation of mass transit projects.


Mr. Chairman, the convoluted threat of future higher gas prices as the stick to beat Fayette County into


keeping our mass transit projects in the regional plan is absurd.  


The direct and honest retort is thousands upon thousands of families accepted higher transportation costs


by merely moving to Fayette County.  Mr. Chairman, no one moved to Fayette County to be close to


anything.  


In fact, many of us are refugees from the current mass transit counties in Metro Atlanta.  Therefore, Mr.


Chairman, if we were overly concerned with the costs of transportation, we would have saved hefty


amounts of money annually by living in the mass transit counties; where, by the way, we could also find


lesser expensive housing.


Is it any wonder, Mr. Chairman, that the stats related to a better quality of life are significantly higher in


Fayette County?


From a purely technical point-of-view, it makes absolutely no sense to have mass transit planned for


Fayette County in the first place.  No intelligent transportation planner could justify the one size fits all


approach of placing mass transit in a county consisting of 105,000 inhabitants in a 200 square-mile area. 


Even by 2030, our anticipated population is not expected to reach 170,000.


By contrast, Mr. Chairman, let’s take a look at a reasonable comparison.  DeKalb County is close in size at


271 square miles, but their population is around 670,000.  


DeKalb County has a population density of 2,483 persons per square mile.  On the other hand, Fayette


County has a population density of 528 persons per square mile.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page 7


DeKalb County, along with financial powerhouse Fulton County, cannot afford to keep MARTA afloat.  How


could anyone reasonably conclude a far less dense Fayette County would ever be able to support mass


transit?  The cost in additional taxes for mass transit capital projects, operations and maintenance for


Fayette County would make rising gas prices look like a bargain.


When regional transit committees endorse the “development of land use regulations and patterns that


support transit uses,” what they are really saying is they want our population density to be more like DeKalb


County, nearly five times greater, in order to support mass transit.


Mr. Chairman, thinking that our county could ever afford to sustain mass transit with our current low density


policies and anything close to our current rate of taxation is pure folly.  The citizens of Fayette County


demand that their leaders protect our quality of life which includes the perseveration of our low density land


use and low rates of taxation.


The citizens of Fayette County moved here to avoid the urbanization and mass transit.  They want their


priorities to be espoused by their elected officials.


Therefore, I make a motion on behalf of  all citizens of Fayette County to have the RESOLUTION ON
“FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY AND PROTECTING FAYETTE COUNTY’S QUALITY OF LIFE”
REQUESTING THE ELIMINATION OF ALL PLANNED PUBLIC MASS TRANSIT PROJECTS WITHIN
FAYETTE COUNTY’S BOUNDARIES, INCLUDING CONCEPT 3, PLAN 2040 AND ALL OTHER PLANS


THAT INCLUDE MASS TRANSIT Placed on the next Board of Commissioners meeting agenda for


approval.


Commissioner Frady mentioned that the Board had worked hard to keep light density in Fayette County,
and that Fayette County was not close to being DeKalb County.  He continued that Commissioner Brown
may be “looking somewhat backward with that” since no one at the Atlanta Regional Commission thinks
that Fayette County is near to being ready, willing, or wanting to have any mass transit.  He added that he
will never vote for mass transit, that he sits on the Transit Committee and that he knows the plans, that
mass transit will not come to Fayette County without the voters approving a referendum, and that he did not
want to “shoot myself in the foot at this particular time when we are trying to get money to build roads that
comes through the ARC (Atlanta Regional Commission), it is tantamount to pulling out of the ARC what you
are suggesting.”  He continued that while some may agree to withdrawing from the ARC, Fayette County
should not because it could not afford to do so.


Commissioner Hearn explained that every individual county in the metro-Atlanta region that has bus and
transit service supported their bus and transit service at the local level.  He stated that while Commissioner
Brown “continues to talk about a Regional Transit Authority that pushes transit on Fayette County whether
we want it or not, that is unprecedented in this region at this time; not to say it couldn’t happen but so far it
has not happened.”  His second point was that the Fayette County Board of Commissioners controls land-
use density plan in unincorporated Fayette County, and that this Board as well as many previous Boards
have agreed to “stick by” the land-use plan.  He explained that the current land-use plan does not have the
density to support transit, despite the ARC’s suggestion that Fayette County should modify its land-use plan
to support it.  He told the audience that Fayette County’s current and past Commission boards have
“always refused to modify the plan as suggested by the ARC.”  He stated that Fayette County does not
need transit in Fayette County, but as he looked down the road when the County reaches the projected







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page 8


population of 160,000 people it would translate into approximately 55-60% of additional traffic on County
roads.  He challenged the “good traffic planners to say that our commutes would be intolerable at times with
that additional traffic.”  He also mentioned that being part of a region required counties to be good
neighbors, and that meant the counties plan together although there may be different philosophies, but it
would be foolish not to get input from Coweta County on their plans.  He asked staff to communicate with
Coweta County concerning their plans for a light-rail line in order to understand their thoughts and
motivations.  He repeated that he was not supportive of transit in Fayette County since it does not make
sense for the county, but he asked what would the County look like in 20 or 30 years.


Commissioner Horgan agreed with Commissioner Brown saying Fayette County does not need transit, and
he agreed with Commissioner Hearn saying transit will not work in Fayette County.  He continued that
whether the county likes it or not, “working with the ARC is very important”, and he thought a classic
example is “Peachtree City pulling out and doing what they have been doing with the ARC, and they have
lost funding for projects.”  He explained that what was being discussed was a Concept Plan, and it is a plan
that people are thinking out into the future about what may happen or be a reality.  He said that if the
County does not “have planning it is very poor on our part not to have something out there.”  He stated that
the citizens needed to be empowered in order to make the decision since the decision for mass transit is
ultimately not up to the Board but up to the citizens.  He encouraged the citizens to contact the ARC and to
be a part of the process and discussion rather than work to remove Fayette County completely from the
region.  


Commissioner McCarty replied that if the County participated in the vote [for the Concept Plan], then the
ARC would make the determination regarding what Fayette County does since they would provide the
county guidelines and would expect Fayette County to follow them.  The Board disagreed with
Commissioner McCarty’s statement. 


Commissioner Brown replied that the Regional process has been ongoing for the past 10 years, and that
issues that were “a pipe dream in 2004" such as a regional sales tax for roads, become realities as
demonstrated in last year’s approval of House Bill 277.  He rhetorically asked how many citizens would be
able to select the projects to be constructed, and in what counties, should the referendum pass in 2012.  He
answered that none of the citizens would have a choice in the matter and welcomed them to Regional
government.  He agreed with the Board saying that currently mass transit could only come to Fayette
County by a referendum by the voters, but that the Regional government was trying to change the system
by creating a Regional Transit Authority.  He cautioned that in Regional government, local control ‘starts to
erode and disappear” and then control is left to a group of individuals in Atlanta to make decisions on
Fayette County’s behalf.  


Chairman Frady asked Commissioner Brown who was voting for mass transit.  Commissioner Brown
replied that former County Chairman Jack Smith and Fayetteville Mayor Ken Steele were voting for mass
transit projects.  Chairman Frady noted that Chairman Smith was no longer on the Board of
Commissioners, and he repeated that he would not vote for mass transit for Fayette County. He added that
he would not vote in favor of House Bill 277 if Fayette County did not get its money back, and he asked that
the Board and people not vote in favor of the bill if it did not benefit Fayette County.  


After further discussion, the Board decided, via a 3-2 consensus, not to proceed with discussion or passage
of Resolution No. 2011-06 until more information concerning how Coweta County is impacted with mass
transit being conceptualized for Senoia becomes available and after the vote on House Bill 277.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page 9


RECESS: The Board of Commissioners moved into a temporary recess at 5:02 p.m. and returned to
the Official Workshop Meeting at 5:16 p.m.


6. Discussion of Senate Bill 86 which relates to eliminating some statewide planning mandates.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel and Director of Community Development Pete Frisina explained Senate
Bill 86 to the Board and answered the Board’s questions.  Mr. Krakeel explained that the Georgia State
Legislature was currently in session, and it was considering Senate Bill 86 and House Bill 260 concerning a
joint effort between the Association of County Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG) and the Georgia
Municipal Association (GMA) about state requirements of local governments with respect to comprehensive
planning as well as developments of regional impact.  He reported that counties are required to provide to
the State of Georgia updates to its Comprehensive Growth Management Plan, its Fire Impact Plan, and its
Capital Project Plan on an annual basis.  He continued that this process has been in place since
approximately 1985, and that the Fayette County Planning and Zoning Department spends a considerable
amount of time each year preparing the information to submit to the Georgia Department of Community
Affairs (DCA).  He continued that failure to submit the required plans could result in the County losing
potential grant funds that may be available through the state.  He explained that Senate Bill 86 and House
Bill 260 are designed to eliminate the requirements on local governments to submit the information on an
annual basis.  He concluded that a number of Commissioners had expressed interest to him concerning
this bill, and that some had requested a letter be sent to the County’s legislative delegation in Atlanta,
however, it was not clear from the emails he received from the Commissioners whether or not the Board
would support these bills.  He said his goal was to get a consensus from the Board on this matter in order
for staff to know how to proceed.


Commissioner Frady commented that he had a spoken about this item at the ARC and that the ARC, which
is against the bill, is trying to meet with the GMA and ACCG, who are in favor of the bill, to try to find
common ground for all three entities. 


Commissioner Brown stated that if you are a lightly populated county in southwest Georgia, and as such
you have limited means, and you have to draw plans each year, he could see how the regulations could be
a severe problem in terms of cost, and he thought the thrust for this change was coming from the rural
southern Georgia counties.  He contrasted those counties with those in the metropolitan Atlanta area, and
he said the annual planning should be an “absolute requirement” because of issues like transportation,
quality of life, and other factors.  


Mr. Frisina told the Board that having had to work on planning in Fayette County, and since the County first
initiated its first plan in the early 1990s based on the Planning Act of 1989, the state’s vision for
comprehensive planning was it would be the centralized document for everything the county does, but it
has never functioned like that.  He said there are aspects of that plan that the county “compiles and turns in
to the DCA just to meet the mandates”, but the county does not use those documents because it does not
function in that fashion.  He said the chapter that is normally consulted is the Land Use and Planning
chapter, but all the other chapters are almost never used.  He said it was his opinion that, while planning
should not completely go away, the process needed a “retrofit” because much of what the state asks of
Fayette County is just work that is done and then forgotten.  He was concerned that the State of Georgia
had developed a “one size fits all” plan regardless of a jurisdiction’s situation or size, and that it was
inflexible and impractical.  Discussion followed.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page 10


The Board consented to sending a letter to the County’s legislative delegation tentatively supporting Senate
Bill 86 as long as language is included stating the total abolishing of the statewide planning mechanisms
could be dangerous to the Fayette community and that specific reforms be listed.


7. Ms. Kiana Robinson, owner of Kidology Preschool in College Park, would like to request the Board’s
consideration of amending the Zoning Ordinance related to set-backs and buffers, which would
allow her to establish a similar facility in north Fayette County.


Ms. Kiana Robinson, her associate Mr. Farmer, and Director of Community Development Pete Frisina
discussed Ms. Robinson’s request with the Board.  Ms. Robinson told the Board that she desired to bring a
preschool to the Fayette community off Westbridge Road, and that the particular location she was
considering had been abandoned for several years.  She reported that she has spoken to several members
of the Westbridge community concerning the property, and those neighbors supported having a preschool
at the location. She explained that the problems that she experienced with the property concerned the
buffers and the setbacks, and she stated that the property under consideration was across the street from
Old Ford Road at a green, two-story building.


Mr. Frisina explained that the property under question really involved two separate properties at the
intersection of Old Ford Road and Westbridge Road, and that both of the tracts were legal, non-conforming
lots with legal, non-conforming structures and have had legal, non-conforming uses within them.  He said
there are different types of uses in the County’s Zoning Ordinance: permitted uses and conditional uses. 
He explained that the problem with the lots in question were zoned A-R, which requires five acres, but both
properties, if combined, would not compose one acre of property.  He further explained that under their
current, non-conforming use and status, basically one property had a small general or convenience store at
it, and the other building had a car or tire repair business in it.  He explained that there was no way the lots
could meet the conditional use requirements for a daycare center or preschool, and that the setbacks and
buffers could not be met on anything less than a three-acre tract of land.  He added that if the Board
changed the ordinance in order to accommodate Ms. Robinson then it would have to change the ordinance
for the entire county.  He concluded that the County does not have a mechanism for a special use.  


Commissioner Brown informed Ms. Robinson that he could not support her request since the property was
“so far out of compliance”, and he suggests that she look at other locations that may be available due to the
current real estate market.  Chairman Frady replied that he was not in favor of forwarding the request. 
Commissioner Horgan said he would be concerned if there were underground storage tanks for fuel, oils,
and greases since it was an automobile shop, and he recommended looking elsewhere.


The Board consented not to amend the Zoning Ordinance as requested, and to not consider this request at
a later date.


8. Director of Community Development Pete Frisina will discuss how the Zoning Ordinance relates the
number of animals allowed; and the issue of beekeeping.


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina discussed the Zoning Ordinance that relates to the
number of animals allowed, and he also spoke about beekeeping issues that had recently arisen in the
County.  Mr. Mike Maxwell, a local beekeeper in Fayette County, also spoke to the Board.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page 11


Mr. Frisina reported that the first round of amendments to the current Zoning Ordinance had been
accomplished on December 9, 2010, and they encompassed issues that the County was trying to find
agreement with, but he was asked by the Board to remove the two issues currently under consideration,
and to return to the Board to get direction on how the Board wanted staff to address the numbers of
permitted animals and, more recently, issues related to beekeeping.  


He explained that the current Zoning Ordinance permits a set number of dogs and cats that can be kept on
a residential lot, and basically it states that any resident in an R district, be it R-40 or R-20, is limited to
three dogs and cats.  He continued that in areas zoned as A-R, C-C, C-H, and M-1, where a kennel being
the criteria used for everything, including a commercial kennel all the way to someone owning four dogs or
four cats.  He reported that the initial recommendation was to do away with the limitations on cats and only
deal with dogs since “kennels” are more readily associated with dogs than cats.  He asked if it was the
Board’s desire to continue to regulate the number of cats that can be kept in a residential zoning district,
and if that is the Board’s desire it needs to be stated outright, because kennels need to be dealt with as
kennels.  He continued that when the issue is pets, the County has seen situations where a person says
they have four dogs, and they do not have pens or runs since the dogs are kept in the house, and the
County is required to say that the house has to meet the setback.  He spoke about surrounding
communities and counties, and how they handle the issue, including some that regulate pets based on the
nuisance they could cause without regard to the actual numbers of cats or dogs located at a residence.


Commissioner Hearn asked if a person resided in A-R zoning, how many pigs could a person own.  Mr.
Frisina replied the number of pigs were unregulated.  Commissioner Hearn clarified that he could have 40
pigs on his property if he lived in A-R zoning but he would be limited to three dogs if he could not meet the
300-foot setback.  Commissioner McCarty asked if he could have unlimited numbers of pigs without the
300-foot setback, and Mr. Frisina replied there were no setback requirements for pigs.


Commissioner Horgan said he agreed with Mr. Frisina, to separate the cats from the dogs in the ordinance. 
Commissioner Brown added that it was “kind of bizarre” to put cats or dogs in a zoning ordinance, since
they should be regulated in their own separate ordinance, but that commercial kennels should be regulated
under zoning and there should be dictation concerning what type of zoning classification they should be
placed in.  He thought classifying someone who lives in a single-family dwelling as having to have a kennel
was far-fetched and that language should be removed.  He suggested that there be a dog and cat
ordinance, and then a commercial kennel ordinance.  Commissioner Horgan also favored the City of
Fayetteville’s approach of regulating pets on a nuisance basis instead of a numerical basis.  Commissioner
McCarty suggested removing the “noncommercial kennel” language from the current Zoning Ordinance as
well.  Commissioner Hearn also favored not regulating pets based on their numbers, but rather on their
nuisance.  Discussion followed.


The Board suggested that the Ordinance should separate requirements placed on dogs from requirements
placed on cats.  The Board further thought that commercial kennels should be regulated under Zoning, that 
it was “far-fetched” to required a single-family dwelling to be a kennel, and that the language concerning
noncommercial kennels be removed with animals regulated under a dog and cat ordinances.  The Board
also considered that regulating pets and animals based on a nuisance factor, rather than a numerical factor
may be the best approach to consider.  The Board also considered removing the term “kennel” from
residential zoning. 







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page Number 12


The Board directed Mr. Frisina to prepare a recommendation that address its suggestions concerning
regulating dogs and cats, and to return to the Board at a later date. 


The secondary area of concern was about regulations on beekeeping in Fayette County.   He explained
that the County’s ordinance does not mention bees or beekeeping at all, but under Section 5-3, the County
looks at uses or classes of uses, and in researching bees and beekeeping, they are regulated by the
Department of Agriculture.  He explained his thinking that bees are related to agriculture and therefore
would be allowed in A-R districts, but would not be allowed in a residential districts since they are not
agricultural districts.  He said the two situations that drew the County’s attention was based on citizens’
complaints within residential subdivisions.  He acknowledged that beekeeping is becoming a very popular
hobby, but that the bees cause problems that generate complaints.  He asked the Board for direction on
how to address this issue.  He informed the Board that one of the complaints involved a resident who told
his neighbors that he would put a beehive in his one-acre residential lot so the neighbors called the County;
one of whom complained about his son being highly allergic to bees.  The second incident involved bees
swarming around a person’s pool for a good portion of a day.  


Commissioner Frady commented that bees were beneficial to the County since they pollinate the plants,
and Commissioner Horgan suggested that regulations on beekeeping be determined on the size of a
person’s property, and not based on the zoning district they reside in.  


Mr. Mike Maxwell, a beekeeper in Fayette County, addressed the Board about his understanding of the
Zoning Ordinance.  He suggested that since beekeeping is not explicitly prohibited from the R-40 zoning. 
He spoke about why he was cited over his honeybees, and he asked the Board to specify or create an
exception for a certain amount of bees.  He suggested that the Board conduct a hearing to listen to
beekeepers discuss what types of hives would be appropriate for different sized lots.  Discussion followed.   


Concerning beekeeping, the Board considered regulations could be written based on the size of the
beekeeper’s property.  The Board further suggested creating a committee of local beekeepers, for the
committee to include Planning and Zoning staff, and for the committee  to study the beekeeping issue with
the view of presenting a draft ordinance before the Board.  


9. Director of Community Development Pete Frisina will update the Board on the County’s
requirements to perform a Full Plan Update of the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan.


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina explained and discussed the County’s requirements to
perform a Full Plan Update of the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan, and he answered questions from
the Board.


Mr. Frisina explained that this discussion was the first step in the County’s Full Plan Update that had been
previously discussed by the Board concerning Senate Bill 86.  He explained that the State required a three-
step process, and that what was being worked on were the first two steps: namely Community Assessment
and the Community Participation Program.  He explained that this work had been previously accomplished
six years ago and that the County would use the same format since he did not know of anything in the
County that has changed so drastically that requires a major change.  He told the Board that the
Community Participation Program is required by the Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA).  He
told the Board that the County would “really need to have a Steering Committee” comprised no more than
ten citizens, and he explained how they would interact with the Stakeholders’ Group.  He further added that







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page Number 13


this plan met the minimally required standards and that the work would be required at the Atlanta Regional
Commission (ARC) and the DCA for approval before the County could move to the next step.  He also
spoke about the Community Assessment section of the plan, and told the Board that there were only certain
portions of the plan that currently needed the Board’s review, and that most of the plan involved collecting
and reporting various aspects of information.  He then briefly spoke about “Issues and Opportunities”.


Commissioner Brown said he wanted attention to be paid to the amount of SPLOST money to improve the
flow of traffic congestion and ways to protect transportation corridors through zoning, as an example by
limiting the number of curb cuts and accesses via parcel size, and overlay zones.  Mr. Frisina suggested
that the County “put something under both the land use and the transportation issues and opportunities that
talks about access management plans.”  Discussion followed, during which time Mr. Frisina also spoke of
other possible projects outlines in three other sections of the Comprehensive Plan.    


The Board consented to allow staff to perform a Full Plan Update of the Fayette County Comprehensive
Plan,  to take the update through the Public Hearing process with the Planning Commissioner and the
Board of Commissioners, and to eventually submit the “Community Agenda” to the ARC and the DCA for
review and approval. 


10. Director of Community Development Pete Frisina will ask for direction on how to redesignate
remnants of old road right-of-way resulting from  the reconfiguration of property that was formerly
portions of Huiet and Lester Roads, as related to existing platted properties known as Waterlace
and Postal Commons.


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina asked for direction on how to redesignate two  remnants
of the old road right-of-way resulting from the reconfiguration of property that was formerly portions of Huiet
and Lester Roads, as related to existing platted properties known as Waterlace and Postal Commons.  He
explained that the County is in the process of modifying or revising the final plats in those areas based on
exchanges of property the County has made for the roadway.  He specified there were two areas that staff
“did not have a good feel for” since the County has never been in a situation where it has abandoned roads
with other roads being built right next to them.  He pointed out section 5-15 of the Zoning Ordinance, and he
explained how it could apply to the immediate situation.  


County Attorney Scott Bennett gave further explanation, saying the County was “actually planning to
abandon it as a remnant and then, once we have abandoned it, then we do a land swap value for value.” 
He continued explaining that Mr. Frisina’s issue was “after they take it, it is a void piece of land, he doesn’t
know what to do with it” concerning either its zonings or setbacks.  He added that the problem was
complicated further due to the fact that the abandoned roads are so old there are no records showing how
their properties were originally zoned to begin with since a typical abandonment would revert to its original
zoning.  


County Administrator added that another problem was that if the County maintains ownership of the
property then where would the right-of-way be measured from.  He explained that if the County retained the
properties in question, and then measured the right-of-way from the edge of the County’s property, the
County would “end up with a nonconforming lot or a building that may not be allowed on a particular piece
of property.”  He asked the Board to provide direction since there were a couple of property owners affected
by this problem.  Discussion followed.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page Number 14


County Attorney Bennett recommended that the County needed to pass a resolution abandoning the
properties as right-of-way, and once that occurred the properties would become general county property
regardless of how it is defined.  He added that once the resolution was passed it would also solve the
setback issue since it is no longer right-of-way.


The Board consented to authorize the County Attorney to draft a resolution abandoning the old road right-
of-way in order for the areas in question to become general County property, and to place the resolution on
the March 10, 2011 Agenda for approval. 


 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT


11. New Hope Baptist Church has contacted the County concerning a site across S.R. 74 South,
formerly known as Starr’s Mill Baptist Church, but used in recent years as a part of the New Hope
South Campus.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel asked for Agenda Item 11 to be discussed in Executive Session as Real
Estate Acquisition.


EXECUTIVE SESSION


Commissioner Horgan moved to recess into Executive Session to discuss Agenda Item 11 as Real Estate
Acquisition.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 6:34 p.m. and returned to Official Workshop Session at 6:42 p.m.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS


Commissioner Steve Brown: Commissioner Brown spoke about three different instances where the dog park in
Peachtree City has had dogs “dumped” on the site that people have picked up on the sides of the roads because the
County’s Animal Shelter cannot accept them on weekends.  He said the problem being experienced at the dog park
is that they cannot accept the liability for the dog at the park.  He suggested for a system to be established utilizing
local police or some other agency so that a dog can be taken to a designated place during the weekend.  


County Administrator Jack Krakeel replied that he would be glad to look into the issue.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
March 2, 2011
Page Number 15


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Horgan moved to adjourn the February 24, 2011 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner
Hearn seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  The Board adjourned its
March 2, 2011 Workshop Meeting at 6:47 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk                      Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 24th day of March 2011.


___________________________________
Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk








Minutes
Board of Commissioners


March 10, 2011
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, March 10, 2011, at  7:00
p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Commissioner Absent: Steve Brown


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________
Chairman Frady called the meeting to Order.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance.


Commissioner Steve Brown was absent from the meeting due to his attendance at the Atlanta Regional Commission’s
2040 Transportation Plan presentation and public discussion.  


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: Chairman Frady requested consent item #13 be removed for discussion.  Commissioner
Hearn made a motion to remove consent item #13 from the agenda for further discussion. Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0 with Commissioner Brown being absent.  Commissioner Horgan made
a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0
with Commissioner Brown being absent.  


PUBLIC COMMENT:
Bob Ross:   Bob Ross commented on the commuter rail plan update and the study that was commissioned by the
Department of Transportation and the Metro Atlanta Chamber of Commerce in 2007.  He presented a copy of this study
update that was prepared by R. L. Banks & Associates, Inc.  A copy of his report, identified as “Attachment No. 1",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  He said there appeared to be some trepidation on the part



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov





Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 10, 2011


Page 2


of the analysts in accurately gauging the cost of commuter rail.  He also pointed out that there were virtually no
unsubsidized passenger rail systems in the world. He briefly discussed the proposed routes and the user estimates for
these routes along with commuter rail costs  and profitability.  He concluded by noting that estimated costs significantly
exceed the benefits.   


Paul Parchert: Paul Parchert remarked that the vast majority of Fayette County citizens were opposed to the West
Fayetteville Bypass.  He said the Board had gone against the will of the people and steadfastly moved forward with the
ill conceived plans.  He said there was absolutely no doubt that this unnecessary project would  merely move congestion
from one part of the county to another and contribute to further population growth that the project was purported to
resolve. He said if the Board wanted to improve the tax base, he suggested the Board find a way to improve the
attractiveness of Fayette County and encourage home buyers to purchase the hundreds of foreclosed homes scattered
throughout the county.  He said the citizens of Fayette County can make adjustments in their personal spending yet
elected officials were obsessed with gross spending, regulation and waste.  He suggested the Board devote some effort
into creating an efficient and effective government and perform a top to bottom review of the entire county bureaucracy
and validate the requirement for every county employee with actual productivity data.  


David Hall:   David Hall commented on the overwhelming arguments that had been presented during the last several
years against the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He felt the Board had failed to give explanations as to why the West
Fayetteville Bypass was a good project.  He also questioned the transparency of the Board and remarked that questions
have been asked of the Board that have never been answered.  He said it was his belief that the intentions of the Board
were not good and he felt the County deserved leaders with integrity and honor.    


Robert Jones: Robert Jones said he wanted to thank Chairman Frady for signing the paperwork on March 3  for therd


county to take property along the West Fayetteville Bypass that he owned on Sandy Creek Road.  He said for what the
county offered and was paying him for this property he felt this was not a fair and reasonable settlement.  He pointed
out that there were six trees located on a temporary work construction area consisting of 487 square feet.  He said the
county was going to pay him $50 for this and he did not feel this was a fair settlement for this parcel.  


Claudia Eisenberg: Claudia Eisenberg remarked that she had moved here from Cobb County in 1992 to escape the
traffic and bus service there.  She expressed concern with HB 277 and felt there was a lot of uncertainty.  She
questioned why this Board would not sign the Resolution presented at the last meeting if in fact this Board was opposed
to any type of public transportation in this county.  She said this was an opportunity for this Board to sign this Resolution
and stand by its word.  She also questioned what would occur if this Board did oppose HB 277 and pointed out that this
was a ten region vote.  She questioned where this would leave Fayette County citizens.  


Gordon Furr: Gordon Furr commented on the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He expressed concern with item #19 under
old business regarding the funds in the amount of $184,324 being requested to rebuild a 1987 model Caterpillar.  He
also commented on the West Fayetteville Bypass and the number of people who would die as a result of the many
tractor trailers that would be traveling passed schools and subdivisions.  He said also commented on the bridge located
on West Bridge Road and the amount of money it would cost to straighten that out.  He also pointed out that there was
a “dead man’s curve” located at Peters Road and this would be extremely dangerous with tractor trailers traveling in that
area.   


Randy Ognio: Randy Ognio commented on the fiscal responsibility Resolution that was presented at the last meeting.
He said three of the Commissioners voted on March 2  for the Resolution not to proceed to the meeting tonight for and


vote.  He asked if these three Commissioners had actually read the Resolution or had they just voted in opposition
because Commissioner Steve Brown had presented it.  He said this Board states that it is against mass transit yet not







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 10, 2011


Page 3


willing to put signatures on this Resolution to back this up.  He also commented on item #19 requesting funds in the
amount of $184,324 to be spent on a 1987 Caterpillar D6H dozer and he felt this was ridiculous.  He noted that after the
work was done, this would still be a 1987 machine and only worth approximately $50,000.  He felt the county did not
even need this machine because it only had 6,242 hours on it which equated to about 271 hours per year or  5 hours
per week.  


CONSENT AGENDA: Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve consent agenda items 1 - 17 with the exclusion
of item #13 as presented.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0 with Commissioner
Brown being absent.   


BUILDING AND GROUNDS MAINTENANCE - P558, P614 AND P623 BUILDING MAINTENANCE SERVICES, INC.
AND IMAGANN CLEANING SERVICE, INC. EXTENDED:
1. Approval of staff’s recommendation to extend Proposals P558, P614, and P623 to Building Maintenance


Services, Inc. and Imagann Cleaning Service, Inc. for one additional year, effective July 1, 2011, at an
aggregate yearly cost of $48,096 for custodial services.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No.  2", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES:
2. Approval of staff’s request to increase Fire Services Fiscal Year 2011 Donations/Miscellaneous Revenue


Account by $500 and increase the Public Relations Expenditure Account by $500 to recognize a donation from
the Kiwanis Club of Fayette County.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


WATER SYSTEM:
3. Approval of staff’s request for authorization to have a Water System  600 HP Motor on Pump #2 at Lake Horton


repaired by Nelson Electric Company at a total cost of $20,300 with funds to come from the South Fayette
Water Plant Repair and Maintenance Account.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment
No.  4", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


WATER SYSTEM:
4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Request for Quotes #Q-700 Brooks Water Tank Removal, to low


bidder, VATO LLC in the amount of $13,750 which includes a salvage credit of $10,400; and authorization for
the Chairman to execute the contract with the vendor pending approval by the County Attorney.  A copy of the
request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 5", follows these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.  


PURCHASING DEPARTMENT:
5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award the County’s annual Bid #770 Paper Janitorial Supplies to four


different companies including Clean Janitor & Paper Supply, Battle & Battle, Inc., Dade Paper Co. and
Southeast Link.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No.  6", follows these minutes and
are made an official part hereof.  


PURCHASING DEPARTMENT:
6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award the County’s annual Bid #771 Plastic Janitorial Supplies to six


different companies including All Clean Janitor & Paper Supply, Calico Industries, Inc., Dade Paper Co.,
Interboro Packaging Corporation, Pyramid School Product and People Janitorial Supply.  A copy of the request
and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follows these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 10, 2011


Page 4


PURCHASING DEPARTMENT:
7. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award the County’s annual Bid #772 Cleaning Supplies to seven different


companies including All Clean Janitor & Paper Supply, C.M. Tanner Grocery Co., Inc., Dade Paper Co., HD
Supply Facilities Maintenance, LTD., Peoples Janitorial Supply, Quill Corporation and Specialty Products Co.
A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 8", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.  


PURCHASING DEPARTMENT:
8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award the County’s annual Bid #778 Maintenance Cleaning Items to five


different companies including Atlantic Tape & Pkg., C.M. Tanner Grocery Co. Inc., Georgia Correctional
Industries, People Janitor S & C and Pyramid School Product.  A copy of the request and backup, identified
as “Attachment No. 9", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


PURCHASING DEPARTMENT:
9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award the County’s annual Bid #779 Uniform Rental & Purchase to


Unifirst for rental items and Ameripride Services, Inc. for purchased items.  A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 10, follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


ROAD DEPARTMENT:
10. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville


to provide for the resurfacing of two streets, Pinevale Court and Robinson Drive, during the 2011 paving
season; and authorization for the Chairman to execute the Agreement, pending approval by the County
Attorney.  A copy of the request and Intergovernmental Agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 11", follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S OFFICE:
11. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the  Criminal Investigations Division


by $8,234.10 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment No. 12", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


TAX ASSESSORS OFFICE:
12. Approval of staff’s recommendation for the disposition of requests for real estate and personal property tax


refunds.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 13", follows these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.  


BOARD OF ELECTIONS - APPOINTMENT OF DARRYL HICKS:
13. Approval of staff’s request that the Board of Commissioners certify the appointment of Lisa Viviano to the Board


of Elections by the Fayette County Democratic Party to fill an unexpired four-year term which commenced on
February 1, 2008 and will expire on January 31, 2012, as required by State law.  A copy of the request and
backup, identified as “Attachment No. 14", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Chairman Frady remarked that Lisa Viviano had to relocate back to Chicago because of family illness and the new
Fayette County Democratic Party nominee was Darryl Hicks.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to certify the
appointment of Darryl Hicks to the Fayette County Elections Board.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 10, 2011


Page 5


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to certify the appointment of Darryl Hicks as the Fayette County Democratic
Party’s nominee on the Fayette County Elections Board to fill an unexpired four-year term which commenced on
February 1, 2008 and will expire on January 31, 2012.  Chairman Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0
with Commissioner Brown being absent.  


BOARD OF ELECTIONS - APPOINTMENT OF ADDISON LESTER:
14. Approval of staff’s request that the Board of Commissioners certify the appointment of Addison Lester to the


Elections Board by the Board of Commissioners to fill a four-year term that commenced on February 1, 2010
and will expire on January 31, 2014, as required by state law.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No. 15", follows these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


SOLID WASTE - PROPOSAL #736 EXTENDED:
15. Approval of staff’s recommendation to extend Proposal #736 to Martin Edwards & Associates, Inc. for


Vegetative Debris Grinding for one additional year, beginning March 1, 2011 and ending February 29, 2012.
A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 16", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.  


HUMAN RESOURCES:
16. Approval  of staff’s request for updates and minor modifications to various Human Resources Policies.  A copy


of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 17", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.  


MINUTES:
17. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners meeting held on February 10, 2011.


OLD BUSINESS:
HUMAN RESOURCES - COUNTY’S SELF-INSURED EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN; DENTAL AND
VISION PLAN AND PAID DAY OFF FOR EMPLOYEES: 
18. Further discussion with Human Resources staff regarding possible changes in the County’s self-insured


employee health plan in preparation for the annual renewal date of June 1.  A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 18", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Human Resources Director Connie Boehnke remarked that the renewal package for employee health insurance for FY
2012 was presented at the March 2  Commission Workshop meeting.  She remarked that three options had beennd


presented at that time with insurance rates applying for each option.  She said the dental and vision coverage had also
been presented as stand alone products with those having the same 70/30 ratio as for the health insurance.  She said
the possibility of offering employees the opportunity to have their birthday off work if they participate in the upcoming
Health Risk Assessment.  She said these were the items presented to the Board tonight for consideration.  


County Administrator Jack Krakeel interjected that the Board needed to make a decision regarding the recommendations
that are being made, not only by the healthcare consultant, but Human Resources staff in that the three options are:
(1) the increase in rates that would be witnessed with the current plan and whether the Board wanted to offer plans with
lesser benefits for employees to elect.  He said there would be two options and both of those options would have
significantly higher initial deductibles both for the individual and the family as well as out of pocket expense for things
like hospitalizations.  He said Plan B would pay 80% of in hospital expense with the balance being the employee’s
responsibility.  He noted that Plan C would pay 70% of in hospital expense and would have higher deductibles for
physician visits.  He said these two options were being provided because of the substantial impact in terms of the







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 10, 2011


Page 6


increase in the monthly contributions that the employees would have to make if they wish to maintain their current plan.
He said the current plan increase in rates for family health coverage was approximately $70 per month and would
increase from $309 per month to $380 for County employees to maintain the current plan.  


Commissioner Horgan asked if there was a dollar figure on the “day off” cost to the County, and Ms. Boehnke replied
that it would average $180 per employee.  Commissioner Horgan said he had met with the representatives of Pacific
General  and he felt the plans were necessary in order for the County to keep in line with healthcare cost.  He said he
was not aware of the increase that the new Obama healthcare laws would cost the County, and it was approximately
9% to 10% just for the initiatives and laws that went into effect.  


Commissioner McCarty asked if competitive bidding had been considered in this case.  Ms. Boehnke replied yes and
said this had been done for the last several years but unfortunately this would not be a year that too many insurance
companies would want to bid on Fayette County.  She noted that Human Resources staff was obtaining a quote from
Blue Cross/Blue Shield in order to do a comparison.  She pointed out that the fees for the plan manager remained the
same and the County had been given a three year rate guarantee on these fees.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve Human Resources staff’s recommendation to approve the changes
and additions to the County’s self-insured employee health insurance plan with Meritain Health.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0 with Commissioner Brown being absent. 
 
Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve Human Resources staff’s recommendation to approve the  dental and
vision insurance plans for County employees as presented.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion
carried 4-0 with Commissioner Brown being absent.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve a paid day off for each County employee’s birthday who participates
in the Health Risk Assessment Program. Chairman Frady seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0 with
Commissioner Brown being absent.  


ROAD DEPARTMENT/FLEET MAINTENANCE:
19. Further discussion of staff’s request for authorization to proceed with having a Certified Rebuild performed on


a Caterpillar D6H belonging to the Road Department at a cost estimated at $184,324 with funding to come from
the County’s Contingency Fund.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 19", follows
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Road Department Director Andy Adams commented on the rebuild/refurbishment program that was offered by
Caterpillar.  He remarked that the cost for that program was approximately $184,000 and there were certain benefits in
doing that.  He said the question of availability and cost of a used Caterpillar D6 had come up during a recent
Commission meeting.  He said during the process of discovery the various types and prices for the Caterpillar D6, it had
come to his attention that a step down model which was only slightly less that what the department currently had, that
a new D6 Caterpillar could be purchased in the amount of $201,987 trading in the existing D6 and receiving a $15,000
credit for that.  He said this would mean that a D6 Caterpillar could be purchased off a State contract for approximately
$186,987.  He said it was his recommendation that staff proceed with the purchase of a new D6N Caterpillar.  He noted
that the current D8 Caterpillar was 24 years old and he wanted it to last for many more years to come.  He said the D6N
was a larger dozer without having to depend so greatly on the D8 Caterpillar.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 10, 2011


Page 7


Fleet Maintenance Director Bill Lackey remarked that the warranty offered on the State contract was 12 months unlimited
hours and it was his understanding that at the end of the warranty period, the County would have the option to purchase
an extended warranty.  


Commissioner Hearn remarked that the reason for the lower price for the equipment was a result of getting a tremendous
discount as a government.  He said Caterpillar had always been aggressive in making sure local governments have the
opportunity to purchase loaders, dozers, motor graders and that kind of equipment.  He said this price was in line with
what he would expect to see with the governmental discount.     


Commissioner Hearn made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation to purchase a new Caterpillar D6N in the
amount of $201,987 with the trade-in allowance of $15,000 with the purchase being on the State contract for a total of
$186,987 with funding to come from the Capital Projects Fund.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion
carried 4-0 with Commissioner Brown being absent.  


PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE:
20. Further discussion of a request from the Public Defenders Office concerning a request  to the Georgia Public


Defender Standards Council that will allow the County to retain certain funds collected when applications for
indigent defense services are filed.   A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 20", follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that last year the Board had directed him to pursue an agreement with the
Indigent Defender’s Office regarding the $50 fees that were allowed to be charged by law for representation of indigent
defendant’s in legal matters before the State Court.  He said in order to recoup these fees and for these fees to be
payable to the County, the County must engage in a contract with the Public Defender’s counsel. He said the potential
revenue could be approximately $40,000 per year.  He said he has discussed this with the newly appointed Public
Defender Allen Adams and he has provided the County with a contract to pursue this funding to be returned to the
County’s general fund.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to authorize him to execute the Agreement for Local
Governing Authority of Fayette County to retain application fees and go into the County’s general fund.  


Chairman Frady made a motion to authorize County Administrator Jack Krakeel to execute the Agreement for Local
Governing Authority of Fayette County to retain application fees as provided by O.C.G.A. Sections 7-12-80 to be filed
with the Georgia Public Defenders Standards Council.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried
4-0 with Commissioner Brown being absent.  


REPORTS:
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS
None.


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS
None.


ADJOURNMENT:  Hearing no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Frady made a motion to adjourn
the meeting at 8:04 p.m.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0 with Commissioner Brown
being absent.    


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                   Herbert E. Frady, Chairman







Board of Commissioners Minutes


March 10, 2011


Page 8


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 24  day of March, 2011.  th


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


March 24, 2011
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


1. Presentation of Resolution recognizing the birthday of the American Legion.


2. Presentation of Proclamation for Healthcare Decisions Day on April 16, 2011.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


3. Approval of staff’s recommendation to extend Bids # 709 and 749, Grass
Mowing, to SSFW Landscape Management and Star Valley Landscape for an
additional year, beginning July 1, 2011, at an aggregate cost of $61,521.00.


4. Approval of staff’s request to award Proposal #P781 to Sivad Business
Solutions for the purchase of Imaging Software and three Fujitsu scanners,
at a total cost of $10,550.00, for use by the Elections Department, including
$2,865 to come from the County’s Contingency Account.


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into a three-year agreement with
Deltacom for Primary Rate Interface (PRI) telecommunication circuit service
at four county locations, and authorization for the Chairman to execute said
agreement.


6. Approval of the Sheriff’s request to authorize the Chairman to execute title
documents and all other required documents related to the disposal of a
totalled patrol vehicle assigned to the Fayette County Sheriff’s Department-
Field Operations Division, and for funds rendered to Fayette County to be
placed in the General Funds- Insurance Recovery Line Item.


7. Approval of February 24, 2011 Board of Commissioners Minutes, the March
2, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes, and the March 10, 2011
Board of Commissioners Minutes.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
March  24, 2011
Page Number 2


OLD BUSINESS:


8. Consideration of Resolution No. 2011-06 which withdraws support for local legislation associatied with
Resolution 2010-22 which related to introducing legislation to amend certain provisions of the local act creating
the Fayette County Board of Elections, specifically how the process for appointment of its members occurs.


9. Consideration of a “Joint Resolution to Support the Transportation Investment Act of 2010 Project Submittal”.


10. Consideration of a resolution approving an Agreement of Sale with the Fayette County Public Facilities
Authority and a Bond Purchase Agreement with the Authority and Merchant Capital, L.L.C. relating to the
issuance by the Authority of its Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011, for the Justice Center and Jail, and
for other related purposes.


11. Consideration of the Water Committee’s recommendation for Mallett Consulting to design engineering plans
and to oversee the sebsequent bidding process pertaining to the Magnetic Ion Exchange (MIEX) process for
removal of Total Organic Carbons at the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant and the South Fayette Water
Treatment Plant.


REPORTS:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS


ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Buildings and Grounds Greg Ownby


Approval of staff's recommendation to extend Bids # 709 and 749, Grass Mowing, to SSFW Landscape Management and Star Valley 


Landscape for an additional year beginning July 1, 2011, at an aggregate cost of $61,521.00.


In FY 2011, the Board awarded Bid #709, Grass Mowing to SSFW Landscape Management for $2,150.00 per month for the cutting of 


Brooks Park, and to Star Valley Landscape for $1,340 per month plus $2,475.00  for two applications of 450 bales of pine straw twice a 


year each for cutting and maintaining the Justice Center.  These bids are for mowing two days per week during a seven-month cutting 


season, with the exception of the Justice Center which is cut and maintained year round for twelve months.  The original bid included 


North Georgia Land Services for cutting at McCurry Park, but the vendor declined for the FY2012 budget year.  After removing North 


Georgia Land Services from the original bid, the revised cost for Bid #709 is $33,605. 


 


The Board also awarded Bid #749, Grass Mowing (Two Day), to SSFW Landscape Management for $3,988.00 per month for cutting 


Kiwanis Park.  This award applies to a seven month cutting season.  The cost for Bid #749 is $27,916. 


 


Both companies have agreed to maintain their current fees as approved in the FY2011 budget. 


 


Staff is requesting that Bids #709 and #749, Grass Mowing (Two Day) be extended (albeit removing North Georgia Land Services from 


the bid) for one year to SSFW Landscape Management and Star Valley Landscape, at an aggregate cost of $61,521.00.  


Motion to approve the extension of Bids #709 and 749, excluding North Georgia Land Services, for one additional year, becoming 


effective July 1, 2011, at an aggregate cost of $61,521.00.


Funding for this request has been budgeted in the Recreation and Justice Center budgets.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Bid #709 was last extended on May 13, 2010.  Bid #749 was also awarded on May 13, 2010.


ConsentThursday, March 24, 2011

















		Buiding and Grounds- Bids Extension Agenda Request File.pdf

		Building and Grounds- Bid Extension Agenda Request with Backup

		Buiding and Grounds- Bids Extension Agenda Request File.pdf

		Building and Grounds- Bids Extension Backup












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Board of Commissioners


Presentation of Resolution recognizing the birthday of the American Legion.


Fayette County is fortunate to have two chapters of the American Legion, Posts 50 and 105. Post 105 was started in Fayette County in 


1927 with Post 50 relocating to Fayette County a number of years ago. Together these Posts have approximately 700 members. 


 


The American Legion first started in 1919 after World War I ended and American soldiers, prior to returning to the United States, wanted 


a means of communicating and fellowshipping with other veterans once they got home. A meeting of servicemen, known as the "Paris 


Caucus" occurred on March 15, 1919 in France, where what is known as the American Legion was started. 


 


Local Legion members will be present to receive the Resolution.


Issue the Resolution and recognize members of Posts 50 and 105 who are in attendance. Will need to take a picture.


No funding required.


Yes March, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, March 24, 2011









		Commissioners- American Legion Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- American Legion Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Jack Krakeel 


Consideration of  a "Joint Resolution to Support the Transportation Investment Act of 2010 Project Submittal".


As a part of the requirements of House Bill 277, known as the Transportation Investment Act, counties in our region must submit a list of 


transportation improvement projects to the Atlanta Regional Commission by March 30. Projects from all communities in the ARC region 


will be considered and eventually a comprehensive list of projects from the entire region will be proposed for funding via a one percent 


regional transportation tax. In 2012 there will be a region-wide referendum to allow the public to vote on the tax.  


 


County and City officials and staff have worked for several weeks to develop a list of projects from throughout the entire county that are 


suitable to be submitted to ARC. The resolution under consideration is a joint document that is being adopted by the county and all of its 


municipalities so that it can be signed by all entities and submitted along with the list of projects to the Atlanta Regional Commission. 


Officials felt that one joint resolution would be more appropriate than six individual resolutions sent to ARC.


Motion to adopt the "Joint Resolution to Support the Transportation Investment Act of 2010 Project Submittal".


No funding required.


Yes


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, March 24, 2011







 
 


 
JOINT RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE TRANSPORTATION  


INVESTMENT ACT OF 2010 PROJECT SUBMITTAL 
 


WHEREAS, Fayette County and the municipalities of Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone, 
Brooks and Woolsey have worked together to develop the Unconstrained Project List as required by the 
Transportation Investment Act of  2010 (TIA); and 


 
WHEREAS, it is desirable to submit the list jointly with Fayette County and the other 


jurisdictions in the County; and  
 
WHEREAS, this list was developed from the Fayette County Comprehensive Transportation Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, this list was prioritized by a countywide group of elected officials and staff; and 
 
WHEREAS, this list represents the financial unconstrained list of projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the governing body of each entity has considered this Resolution at an official 


meeting and has duly acted upon it on the dates indicated below; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the governing bodies of Fayette County and the 


municipalities of Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone, Brooks, and Woolsey, to confirm support of the 
joint submittal of the attached Transportation Investment Act Unconstrained Project List. 


 
FAYETTE COUNTY      Attest:  
      
_________________________   Date: _______________ _________________________ 
Herbert Frady, Chairman     County Clerk 
 
CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE     Attest:  
      
_________________________   Date: _______________ _________________________ 
Kenneth T. Steele, Mayor     City Clerk 


 
CITY OF PEACHTREE CITY    Attest:  
      
_________________________   Date: _______________ _________________________ 
Don Haddix, Mayor      City Clerk 


 
TOWN OF TYRONE      Attest:  
      
_________________________   Date: _______________ _________________________ 
Don Rehwaldt, Mayor      Town Clerk 


 
TOWN OF BROOKS      Attest:  
      
_________________________   Date: _______________ _________________________ 
Daniel Langford, Jr., Mayor     Town Clerk 


 
TOWN OF WOOLSEY      Attest:  
      
_________________________   Date: _______________ _________________________ 
Gary Laggis, Mayor      Town Clerk 


 





		Commissioners- Joint Transpor...ution Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Joint Transportation Resolution Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Board of Commissioners


Presentation of a Proclamation designating April 16 as "Healthcare Decision Day".


Piedmont Fayette Hospital has undertaken a effort to create awareness of the importance of planning ahead for health care decisions, 


particularly for end of life care and medical decision-making. A part of their efforts is to have local officials proclaim April 16, 2011 as 


"Healthcare Decisions Day" in Fayette County.


Issue the Proclamation and recognize Hospital officias in attendance. Will need to take a picture.


No funding required.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, March 24, 2011









		Commissioners- Proclamation Healthcare Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Proclamation Healthcare Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Commissioner Horgan


Consideration of Resolution No. 2011-06 which withdraws support for local legislation associated with Resolution No. 2010-22 which 


related to introducing legislation to amend certain provisions of the local act creating the Fayette County Board of Elections, specifically 


how the process for appointment of its members occurs.


Elections and voter registration issues in Fayette County are managed by a county department known as the "Elections Department", 


which is staffed by full time employees. However, the Fayette County Board of Elections has certain responsibilities in terms of certifying 


that elections have been held in accordance with Georgia's Elections Laws. There are three members of the Board of Elections. One is 


appointed by each of the political parties and one is appointed by the Board of Commissioners. 


 


In December of 2010, the Board of Commissioners adopted Resolution 2010-22 which supported introducing legislation that would have 


changed the manner in which members of the Board of Elections are appointed. After hearing from a number of citizens who opposed the 


legislation, including one sitting member of the Board of Elections, the Board of Commissioners decided not to support the local 


legislation that would make changes to the Board of Elections appointments. 


 


To confirm the current Board's position, Resolution 2011-06 is under consideration, which would withdraw any earlier support for new 


legislation.


Motion to approve Resolution 2011-06 which withdraws support of legislation that would have altered the process for how appointments 


to the Fayette County Board of Elections must occur. 


No funding required.


Yes


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, March 24, 2011







 
 
 
 
State of Georgia; 
County of Fayette 


 


 


RESOLUTION NO. 2011-06 


 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA RELATING TO 


LOCAL LEGISLATION RELATIVE TO THE BOARD OF ELECTIONS 
 


WHEREAS, in 1994, the General Assembly approved the RE-creation of the Fayette County Board of 
Elections; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners has previously determined that there existed a 


need to change certain provisions of this local legislation relating to the confirmation of the board of elections 
members; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners has spent much time and effort in reviewing those changes to 


the Board of Elections and determined, after consultation with a member of the board of elections, that those 
changes are unwarranted; and 
 


WHEREAS, while the time for a motion to reconsider the prior action has passed, the Board of 
Commissioners still desires to express its withdrawal of support for the prior proposed legislation. 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA, that the Board of Commissioners hereby withdraws its support of the proposed local 
legislation referenced in Resolution 2010-22, directs the County Clerk to take no further action to have this local 
legislation introduced in the General Assembly, and requests that the Georgia General Assembly take no action 
to pass that proposed local legislation. 


 
It is so resolved this 24th day of March, 2011, by the  
 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS                                      


        FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Herbert  E. Frady, Chairman 
 
 
 
        Attest: 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Clerk/Deputy Clerk 





		Commissioners- Resolution 201...pport Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Resolution 2011-06 Elections Withdraw Support Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Elections Tom Sawyer


Approval of staff's request to award Proposal #P781 to Sivad Business Solutions for the purchase of Imaging Software and three Fujitsu 


scanners, at a total cost of $10,550.00, for use by the Elections Department, including $2,865 to come from the County's Contingency 


Account.


During the FY2010 budget process, the Board of Commissioners approved $7,661 to the Elections Department for the purchase of an 


imaging project to scan and record over 100,000 Voter Registration applications for the approximately 80,000 registered Fayette County 


voters; however, since the Elections Department was not able to forward a recommendation to the Board during FY2010, the Board 


approved to transfer the funds to the FY2011 budget at its August 26, 2010 meeting. 


 


On January 28, 2011, an RFP was issued by the Purchasing Department for Imaging Software, and two proposals were received by the 


February 17, 2011 deadline.  The Elections Department is recommending and requesting to award Proposal #P781 to Sivad Business 


Solutions due to its significantly lower price when compared to its competing vendor and since approximately 18 counties in Georgia are 


currently using the same product.   


 


The bid from Sivad Business Solutions  is an aggregate amount comprised of $8,000 for the Imaging Software and an additional $2,550 


for three Fujitsu FL 6130 scanners.  Elections is requested the Board's permission to utilize the $7,685  from Elections FY2011 budget 


and is further requesting the use of $2,865 from Contingency Funds for this purchase.


Approve staff's request to award Proposal #P781 to Sivad Business Solutions for the purchase of Imaging Software and three Fujitsu 


scanners, at an aggregate cost of $10,550.00, and authorization to utilize $2,865  from the County's Contingency Account for this 


purchase.


The aggregate cost of this request is $10,550.00.  The Elections Department's Elections and Voter Registration Operating Budget has 


$7,685 for this purpose, and it would require an additional $2,865  from Contingency funds.


Yes Thursday, August 26, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


The County already uses imaging software known as Tyler Content Management  (TCM) for a number of applications. However, the TCM 


module for elections/voter registration files was not adequate for Fayette County's use, thus other products were sought.


ConsentThursday, March 24, 2011









































		Elections- Imaging Project Agenda Request File.pdf

		Elections- Imaging Project Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Mary Holland


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a three-year agreement with Deltacom for Primary Rate Interface (PRI)  


telecommunication circuit service at four county locations, and authorization for the Chairman to execute said agreement.


In August of 2006, Fayette County entered into a three year agreement with Deltacom, the successful bidder, for PRI telecommunication 


circuit service for the county's facilities located on McDonough Road. 


 


In October of 2007 a request for proposals was sent out for PRI telecommunication circuit service for offices serviced by the Stonewall 


Administrative Complex.  Deltacom was the successful bidder and Fayette County entered into a three year agreement in December of 


2007. 


 


In May of 2009 a request for proposals was sent out for two PRI telecommunication circuits for service at the Jail, Justice Center and 


Sheriff's Office.  Deltacom was the successful bidder and Fayette County entered into a three year agreement in August of 2009. 


 


When the service agreement for the McDonough Road facilities expired, a request for proposals was sent out and Deltacom was once 


again the successful bidder.  A request was made to Deltacom to combine all four circuits under one agreement.  The three year 


agreement for service for the four PRI telecommunication circuits has been reviewed by the County Attorney.    


 


Motion to approve staff's recommendation to enter into a three-year agreement with Deltacom for Primary Rate Interface (PRI) 


telecommunication circuit service at the Stonewall Administrative Complex, the McDonough Road facilities, the Justice Center, and the 


Sheriff's Office and  Jail facilities, and to authorize the Chairman to sign said agreement. 


Funding will be provided from telecommunications funds provided by the various departments serviced by the circuits.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


This agreement will become effective on July 1, 2010, and credit will be issued to Fayette County from July 1, 2010 until the date the 


agreement is executed.  This agreement has been delayed due to legal clarification and wording.


ConsentThursday, March 24, 2011

























































		Finance- Deltacom Agreement Agenda Request File.pdf

		Finance- Deltacom Agreement Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Mary S. Holland


Consideration of a resolution approving an Agreement of Sale with the Fayette County Public Facilities Authority and a Bond Purchase 


Agreement with the Authority and Merchant Capital L.L.C. relating to the issuance by the Authority of its Refunding Revenue Bonds, 


Series 2011, for the Justice Center and Jail, and for other related purposes.


The Fayette County Public Facilities Authority has previously issued its Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 (the "Prior Bonds"), now 


outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $47,995,000, for the purpose of refinancing the costs of acquiring, constructing, and 


installing the Fayette County Jail and Criminal Justice Center (the "Facilities").  The Facilities are currently leased by the Authority to the 


County and the County makes semi-annual lease payments in amounts sufficient to repay the Prior Bonds.  Staff is now recommending 


that the Prior Bonds, due to present market conditions, be refunded in order to achieve debt service savings.  In order to effect the 


refunding, the Authority will approve the issuance of its Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011, the proceeds of which will be applied to 


redeem the Prior Bonds.  The staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners adopt an Authorizing Resolution authoring the County 


to (1) enter into an Agreement of Sale with the Public Facilities Authority in order to purchase the Facilities from the Authority, and the 


County's payments under that agreement will be in amounts sufficient for the Authority to repay the 2011 Bonds, (2) to enter into a Bond 


Purchase Agreement with the Authority and Merchant Capital L.L.C. (the "Underwriter") providing for the sale of the 2011 Bonds to the 


Underwriter, and (3) authorizing the Chairman to execute these documents on behalf of the County and to take all other necessary steps 


in furtherance of the issuance of the 2011 Bonds.


Approve a resolution approving an Agreement of Sale with the Fayette County Public Facilities Authority and a Bond Purchase 


Agreement with the Authority and Merchant Capital L.L.C. relating to the issuance by the Authority of its Refunding Revenue Bonds, 


Series 2011, for the Justice Center and Jail, and for other related purposes, and authorization for the Chairman to execute these 


documents on behalf of Fayette County and to take all necessary steps in furtherance of the issuance of the 2011 Bonds.


Not Applicable.


Yes Various Meetings


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, March 24, 2011





		Finance- Justice Center Bond Refunding Agenda Request File.pdf

		Finance- Justice Center Bond Refunding Backup-Board Only

		1- ATLANTA-#5290132-v2-Authorizing_Resolution___11_Fayette_Refunding.pdf

		2- ATLANTA-#5287573-v3-Agreement_of_Sale___11_Fayette_Refunding

		3- ATLANTA-#5291044-v3-Bond_Purchase_Agreement___11_Fayette_Refunding












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff Major Bryan L. Woodie


Approval of the Sheriff's Department request to authorize the Chairman to execute title documents and all other required documents 


related to the disposal of a totalled patrol vehicle assigned to the Fayette County Sheriff's Department- Field Operations Division, and for 


funds rendered to Fayette County to be placed in the General Funds- Insurance Recovery Line Item.


On January 21, 2011, a 2006 Ford Crown Victoria that was assigned to the Sheriff's Field Operation's Division was involved in a vehicle 


collision and has subsequently been declared to be total loss.  As part of the settlement claim the "at-fault" driver's insurance company, 


State Farm, is requiring that the vehicle be transferred to State Farm. 


 


State Farm will pay Fayette County $9,695.50 for the loss of the vehicle, and said funds will be utilized for the purchase of a replacement 


vehicle.   


 


A separate agenda item request will be submitted for an upcoming meeting on the replacement of this vehicle. 


Motion to approve the Sheriff's request to authorize the Chairman to execute title documents and all other required documents regarding 


the disposal of a totalled patrol vehicle assigned to the Sheriff's Department Field Operations Division, and for funds rendered to Fayette 


County be placed in the Vehicle Replacement Account.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, March 24, 2011

















		Sheriff- Patrol Vehicle Agenda Request File.pdf

		Sheriff- Patrol Vehicle Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Water System Tony Parrott


Consideration of the Water Committee's recommendation for Mallett Consulting to design engineering plans and to oversee the 


subsequent bidding process pertaining to the Magnetic Ion Exchange (MIEX) process for removal of Total Organic Carbons at the 


Crosstown Water Treatment Plant and the South Fayette Water Treatment Plant.


The Water System is required to remove dissolved organic carbon from the raw water in its drinking water supply.  To determine the best 


treatment technique, the Water System conducted two studies.   


 


Two pilot studies were conducted at the South Fayette Water Treatment Plant in order to determine which treatment technique was the 


most effective to meet the requirement.  MIEX DOC Resin is a magnetized ion exchange designed to primarily remove dissolved organic 


carbon (DOC) from drinking water supplies.  It also has the ability to remove large portions of less selective ions such, but not limited to,  


sulfate, nitrate, and chromate. 


 


The total cost of this project will be $9.3 million.  Funding will come from multiple sources including the Georgia Environmental Finance 


Authority and existing Water System funds.  The Fayette County Finance Department is currently studying the need and feasibility of a 


water rate increase to further fund this project.


Approve the Water Committee's recommendation to authorize Mallett Consulting to design engineering plans and to oversee its 


subsequent bidding process pertaining to the Magnetic Ion Exchange process for removal of Total Organic Carbons at the Crosstown 


Water Treatment Plant and the South Fayette Water Treatment Plant.


Funding will be supplied from multiple sources.  Some funding is available from the Renewal and Extension Fund, other funds will be 


borrowed from the Georgia Environmental Finance Authority, and other funds may be utilized after a water rate increase.


Yes Friday, February 11, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


This item was first presented to the Board of Commissioners on June 10, 2010 where the Board considered the pilot study for this project.


Old BusinessThursday, March 24, 2011













		Water System- MIEX Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- MIEX Backup



